

CompleteView[™] Web Client User Manual

CompleteView Version 4.3



Simple.Scalable.Security[™]



Table of Contents

Introduction	1
System Requirements	
Supported Web Browsers	
Overview	
End User License Agreement	3
Getting Started	4
Logging In	
Live View	6
Live View Template	6
Interface Mode	6
Camera Tree	7
Live View Toolbar	7
Controls	7
Enlarge a Single Camera	
Viewing Panel Configuration	9
Pan Tilt & Zoom Camera Control	10
Overview	
Camera Selection	
Control Functions	
Right –click Menu	
Playback	13
Playback Interface	
Overview	
Search Panel	
Playback Panel	
Video Search	
Event Review	
Filtering Results	
Playback	15
Playback Controls	
Export Video	
Exporting Still Images	
Troubleshooting	18



Introduction

System Requirements

Minimum Software Requirements

Microsoft Windows XP / Vista / 7 Supported Web Browser

Minimum Hardware Requirements

Intel Pentium 4 CPU, 2.0 Gigahertz (GHz) or faster.1GB of system memory.Connection to a TCP/IP network.A graphics accelerator with a minimum of 128MB of video memory and capable of displaying 1024x768 resolution in TrueColor (32-bit).

Supported Web Browsers

CompleteView version 3.8.1 and higher supports:

- 1. Mozilla Foxfire
- 2. Google Chrome
- 3. Microsoft Internet Explorer v. 6 and up



Overview

The CompleteView Web Client supports Internet Explorer, Google Chrome and Mozilla Foxfire browsers and allows for live view of up to 16 cameras simultaneously, single camera playback and video export. From this application you will be able to perform the following functions:

- 1. Switch among four live camera view templates.
- 2. Customize live camera view templates.
- 3. Adjust playback frame rate
- 4. Scale the video tile size
- 5. Move pan-tilt-zoom capable cameras that you have the permission to control.
- 6. Search for recorded video events.
- 7. Easily export video events to a standard .AVI file format to disk.
- 8. Export still images taken from recorded video events as standard .JPG files.



End User License Agreement

Salient CompleteViewTM SOFTWARE LICENSE

1. GRANT OF LICENSE. Salient grants to you the right to use one (1) copy of the Salient CompleteView Server SOFTWARE on one (1) computer. Salient grants to you the right to use one (1) copy of the Salient CompleteView Client SOFTWARE on any numbers of computers, provided that the Salient CompleteView Client is solely used to connect to a Salient CompleteView Server. The SOFTWARE is in "use" on a computer when it is loaded into temporary memory (i.e. RAM) or installed into permanent memory (e.g. hard disk, CD-ROM or other storage device) of that computer.

2. COPYRIGHT. The SOFTWARE is owned by Salient and/or its licensor(s), if any, and is protected by copyright laws and international treaty provisions. Therefore you must treat the SOFTWARE like any other copyrighted material (e.g. a book or a musical recording) except that you may either (a) make a copy of the SOFTWARE solely for backup or archival purposes or (b) transfer the SOFTWARE to a single hard disk provided you keep the original solely for backup purposes.

3. OTHER RESTRICTIONS. You may not rent, lease or sublicense the SOFTWARE but you may transfer SOFTWARE and accompanying written materials on a permanent basis provided that you retain no copies and the recipient agrees to the terms of this agreement. You may not reverse engineer, decompile, or disassemble the SOFTWARE. If the SOFTWARE is an update or has been updated, any transfer must include the most recent update and all previous versions.

4. THIRD PARTY Software. The SOFTWARE may contain third party software, which requires notices and/or additional terms and conditions. Such required third party software notices and/or additional terms and conditions are located in the readme file or other product documentation. By accepting this license agreement, you are also accepting the additional terms and conditions, if any, set forth therein.

5. TERMINATION. This License is effective until terminated. Your rights under this License will terminate automatically without notice from Salient if you fail to comply with any term(s) of this License. Upon the termination of this License, you shall cease all use of the SOFTWARE and destroy all copies, full or partial, of the SOFTWARE.

6. GOVERNING LAW. This agreement shall be deemed performed in and shall be construed by the laws of United States, Texas.

7. DISCLAIMER

THE SOFTWARE IS DELIVERED AS IS WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO THE RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE OF THE SOFTWARE IS ASSUMED BY THE PURCHASER/THE USER/YOU. Salient Systems Corporation DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT, OR ANY WARRANTY ARISING OUT OF ANY PROPOSAL, SPECIFICATION OR SAMPLE WITH RESPECT TO THE SOFTWARE. Salient AND/OR ITS LICENSOR(S) SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF PRODUCTION, LOSS OF PROFIT, LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF CONTRACTS OR FOR ANY OTHER CONSEQUENTIAL, ECONOMIC OR INDIRECT LOSS WHATSOEVER IN RESPECT OF SALE, PURCHASE, DELIVERY, USE OR DISPOSITION OF THE SOFTWARE.

Salient TOTAL LIABILITY FOR ALL CLAIMS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SALE, PURCHASE, DELIVERY AND USE OF THE SOFTWARE SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PRICE PAID FOR THE SOFTWARE.



Getting Started

Logging In

The CompleteView Web Client is access through supported web browser.

Note: Your computer must have network access to the CompleteView Server hosting the Web Client pages.

1. Open your supported web browser. In the 'Address' bar type in the address of the CompleteView Server and the Port Number for web access to the CompleteView Server. Your CompleteView system administrator will provide this information.

Note: The correct format to type the URL for Web Client access is: **http://CompleteView Server address:Port Number/**

🕹 Google - Mozilla Firefox		<u>_ </u>
Eile Edit View History Bookmarks Tools Help		
(←) → 192.168.1.115:8080	V C 🔍 V Secure Search	P 💼
Coogle +		
+You Search Images Maps YouTube News Gmail Documents Calendar More -		^
		Sign in
Google		
Google Search I'm Feeling Lucky		
× V Secure Sea	rch 🖉 🔛	McAfee 🧭 🗸

- Mozilla Foxfire with the 'Address Bar' highlighted
- 2. Press 'enter' and you will be prompted for a username and password. Use the username and password are provided by your CompleteView system administrator.

Note: Passwords are case sensitive. User names are NOT case sensitive.



ionnect to local	host	? ×
R	G.	
The server localh password. Warning: This sei password be sen without a secure	ost at Private requires a username and rver is requesting that your username an t in an insecure manner (basic authentica connection).	d tion
User name:	🖸 admin	•
Password:	••••	
	Remember my password	
	OK Cancel	

- 3. A second Java Script login will appear the first time and each subsequent time you open a new web browser. Enter the same username and password entered in step 2.
- 4. Select Ok
- 5. Drag and drop video into the video tiles.





Live View

Live View Template

From live view a user can display cameras in a variety of templates and control Pan Tilt and Zoom cameras.



Live View interface

Interface Mode

Interface Mode bar at the top of the Live View screen is used to switch between Live View and Playback.



Camera Tree

1. On the left hand side of the screen is a tree view of cameras grouped under their corresponding server. This is the Camera Selector. From this control you can drag and drop cameras in viewing tiles as described in <u>Setting Up Views</u>. Icons to the left of the camera name indicate whether the camera is fixed or is a moveable Pan Tilt & Zoom camera. If disable server processing is enabled for any camera that camera, if selected in the Web Client, will not display video in the web client.



Live View Toolbar

The Live View Toolbar controls the current view template, resizing video tiles & video frame rate.



```
Live View Controls (v3.8.1)
```

Controls

	Single camera view: switches to single-camera template.
	Quad View : switches to a 2x2 tiled four-camera template.
=	Nine camera view: switches to a 3x3 tiled template of nine cameras
	Sixteen camera view : switches to a 4x4 tiled template of sixteen cameras.
8-	Decrease camera size : scales down the video size by one increment. Use this to fit the video to the size of your browser window
1	Increase camera size : scales up the video size by one increment. Use this to fit the video to the size of your browser window
240×180 -	Display Tile Size Selector: provides nine different template size selections



	Reset Selected Camera: disconnects and then reconnects to the selected camera
	Reset Current View : Disconnects and then reconnects to all cameras in the current view.
Frame Rate: 🔽	Frame Rate Control : This drop down box allows the selection of frame rate for all cameras in the current view.
Slow	1 frame per second
Med	4 frames per second
Fast	8 frames per second
E Fastest rate when maximized	Fastest Frame Rate: select this option to display the highest frame rate available for the camera. Note : The highest frame rate may not be 30 frames per second, but instead the highest frame rate being received by the CompleteView server.

Control Descriptions

Enlarge a Single Camera

To enlarge a single camera in a 4, 9 or 16 camera view simply double click on the camera of interest and it will expand to the full viewing area. To return to the previous view template, double click the camera again.

Full Screen- Right Click Menu



Using the right mouse button to click on any tile and select full screen.

Exit Full Screen to Tiled View



To return to multiple tiles, right-click on the enlarged tile and select *Exit Fullscreen* or double-click on the enlarged tile.

Double click on the camera of interest



The camera will be resized to fit the entire viewing area





Setting Up Views

There are four different view templates available in the CompleteView Web Client. Each view template is individually configurable. Configuration created on one computer will not affect other computers or users accessing the Web Client. Additionally if you exit the Web Client, your configuration will be saved automatically.

Viewing Panel Configuration

- 1. To configure a view, select the 1, 4, 9 or 16 camera template by clicking the corresponding button on the Live View Control bar.
- 2. Left click on a camera in the Cameras List and drag it to the tile in the view template you wish to display the camera in. The tile you hover over will display a green border as shown below.



3. Release the mouse button and video from the camera will start to display in the tile. Continue to use this drag and drop method to populate the rest of the view.



Pan Tilt & Zoom Camera Control

Overview

Control of Pan Tilt & Zoom cameras is available in the CompleteView Web Client. PTZ cameras can be controlled through button in the interface or using a PC keyboard.

Camera Selection

- 1. Cameras configured as PTZ cameras are identified by a dome camera icon on the left side of the camera label as show below.
- 2. Click on the video tile of the PTZ camera to control it. A PTZ Controls box will scroll up, under the Cameras List.
- 3. The PTZ Controls box contains all the functions necessary to move the camera, zoom in/out and to get/set preset positions.





PTZ Controls

Note: Some PTZ control capabilities may not be available if your user account does not have permission to all the PTZ functions of the associated camera.

Control Functions

1	Up: Tilt the camera up by one increment
↓	Down : Tilt the camera down by one increment
+	Left: Pan the camera left by one increment
-	Right : Pan the camera right by one increment
5	Up Left: Move the camera up and left by one increment



	Up Right: Move the camera up and right by one increment
	Down Right : Move the camera down and right by one increment
	Down Left : Move the camera down and left by one increment
€ €	Zoom In: Zoom the camera in by one increment.
<₽	Zoom Out: Zoom the camera out by one increment
Speed: Fast	Speed : Can be set to Full, Fast, Medium & Slow. Actual Pan, Tilt & Zoom speed is based on the camera being controlled.
Preset: 1	Preset : Selects the preset to work with. The selected preset can be 'set' or moved to using the 'Set' and 'Go' buttons.
Go	Go: Moves to the preset position selected in the 'Preset' drop down box.
Set	Set : Sets the preset position selected in the 'Preset' drop down box to the current camera position.

Note: The number of degrees a camera moves when a pan, tilt or zoom command is issued is dependent on the camera driver being used. Different camera models may move more or less relative to other models.



Right –click Menu

A right-click menu allows users to have some of the same video search options that exist in the standard CompleteView Video Client. (Requires CompleteView v.3.8.1 to be installed at the CompleteView Server.)



- 1. **Search Video** redirects browser to display playback screen to permit search of recorded video for the selected camera
- 2. **Quick Review** redirects browser to display playback screen and permit review of video for the selected time period. Time periods are displayed in the playback screen. User should select search to complete the search.
- 3. **Export Snapshot** takes a snapshot of the currently displayed video.
- 4. **Full Screen** replaces video template with a single full screen tile and displays the selected video. Double-click will provide the same results.

Note: If disable server processing is enabled in the CompleteView server for any camera, that camera, if selected in the Web Client, will not display video in the web client.

Playback

Playback Interface

Overview

The CompleteView Web Client's *Playback* mode is comprised of several different functions:

- Video Event Search by Time & Date.
- Video Event Review
- Video Event Export
- Still Image Export

Search Panel

The *Search Panel* allows you to search for video events in several ways. The results of each search that you perform are displayed in the *Results* list, and can be filtered using three criteria: *Show Scheduled, Show Motion, and Show Alarm.*

Playback Panel

When you select an event displayed in the results list for further review, the video will be displayed in the *Playback Panel*. This panel consists of the *Video window*, *Playback toolbar*, and *Export* buttons.





Video Search

- 1. Perform the following steps to begin a video event search by date.
- 2. From the *Server* drop-down list, select the appropriate *Server* for the camera that you wish search.
- 3. From the *Camera* drop-down list, select the camera that you wish to search.
- 4. Using the *Date Search* pop-up calendar, select the date on which the event occurred.
- 5. Click *Search* and the *Results* list will be filled with video events that match the criteria that you entered above.



Event Review

To review a video event, double-click on the event in the *results list*. The video will begin to play in the <u>Playback Panel</u>.

	Start Time	End Time	Size (KB)
•	2012-01-24 00:00:00	2012-01-2 00:00:00	5 6930855

Results List

Filtering Results

By default, the *results list* displays all of the archived video events for the selected day. You can filter these results by recording type, as shown below.



Results Filter

Playback

Once you have selected a video event for review, it will appear in the Playback Panel.



Located immediately below the video window is the playback control toolbar.

Playback Controls

	Play - plays the current video event to the end and then stops.
н	Pause – pauses video playback
-	Stop - stops playback.
- 14	Jump to Beginning - moves position backwards to the beginning of the current video event.
~~	Rewind - moves position backwards in the current video event by a single frame.
*	Fast Forward - moves position forwards in the current video event by a single frame.



Del -	Jump to End - moves position forwards to the end of the current video event.
🌐 Export Video	Export Video - exports the current video event.
📠 Take Snapshot	Take Snapshot - creates a still image from the current position of the current video event.

Export Video

The CompleteView Web Client provides you with the ability to export full or partial video clips and snapshot images to your PC. To export video perform the following steps:

- 1. Switch to *Playback* mode.
- 2. Perform a Date Search.
- 3. Review video events.
- 4. When you find a video event that you wish to export, stop video playback.
- 5. Click the button labeled *Export Video*.
- 6. Select the portion of video to export:
 - a. With your mouse, grab the white time knobs at each end of the time line.
 - b. Move the knob to the starting point and finish point of the video you wish to export.
 - c. Select Export Video.
 - d. Name the video and select a location for the video to be placed.
- 7. Select cancel to cancel the export process





Exporting Still Images

You can easily export a single still image taken from the current position within the currently selected video event. The still image can be saved to your local disk as a JPEG or BMP file.

- 1. Switch to *Playback* mode.
- 2. Perform a <u>Date Search</u>.
- 3. Review video events.
- 4. When you find an image that you wish to export, stop video playback.
- 5. Use the Step Forward and Step Backward buttons refine your selection.
- 6. When you have determined the exact image that you wish to export, from the bottom control panel, select *Take Snapshot*.
- 7. You will be presented with a Save As dialog box where you can choose the location and name of the destination file.
- 8. Snapshots are saved as JPEG files.

	12:27:00 00:27:00 I < II Make Snapshot	AM (0%) 0 • • • • • • •	0:27:03 deo	
🕌 Save				×
Save <u>i</u> n: 📑 N	Ay Documents		- 6 6	Ì 🗂 🔡 🔚
•				•
File <u>N</u> ame: Files of <u>T</u> ype:	JPEG File			
			Save	Cancel

Troubleshooting

When accessing the Web Client with Microsoft Internet Explorer it may be necessary to modify some operating system and/or Java settings to access the web client and optimize performance.

> Note: Setting changes only apply when accessing the Web Client with IE 8 & 9. When access the Web Client with Chrome or FireFox browsers these settings do not need to be changed.

Configuring for Web Client access on Windows 7 using Internet Explorer v8 or v9

- 1. In Internet Explorer, click Tools -> Internet Options -> Security
- 2. Click 'Custom level...'





General Security Privacy Content Connections Programs Advanced

 \checkmark

Local intranet Trusted sites

 \bigcirc

Restricted sites

Sites

Select a zone to view or change security settings

> This zone is for Internet websites except those listed in trusted and restricted zones.

Allowed levels for this zone: Medium to High

? **X**

Internet Options

Internet

Internet

Security level for this zone



In addition to the above setting change in Internet Explorer, it is necessary to change a setting in Java based on which version of Windows 7 is used.

For users of Windows 7 32 Bit edition

1. Open Windows Control Panel, double click 'Java' to open the 'Java Control Panel'



2. Click the 'Advanced' tab. Under 'Java Plug-in' check 'Enable the next-generation Java Plug-in (requires browser restart)'





For users of Windows 7 64 Bit edition

1. Open Windows Control Panel, double click 'Java' to open the 'Java Control Panel'

🔾 🗢 👰 🕨 Contr 🕨 All Contro	I Panel Items	
Adjust your computer's setting	gs View by: Small icons ▼	
😁 Dell Keyboard Hotkey Settings	Dell Touchpad	
📑 Desktop Gadgets	🚔 Device Manager	
n Devices and Printers	🧧 Display	
🕅 DW WLAN Card Utility	Ease of Access Center	
📕 Flash Player	🔐 Folder Options	
🗽 Fonts	🕼 FreeFall Data Protection	
📲 Getting Started	🤣 HomeGroup	
🚺 IDT Audio Control Panel	🔓 Indexing Options	
🔂 Internet Options	🛓 Java	
🕮 Keyboard	Location and Other Sensors	
Mail		
Network and Sharing Center	Notification Area Icons	
📇 NVIDIA Control Panel	🗠 NVIDIA nView Desktop Manager	
🐻 Parental Controls	Performance Information and Tools	
Personalization	📰 Phone and Modem	
10		

2. Click the 'Advanced' tab. Under 'Java Plug-in' uncheck 'Enable the next-generation Java Plug-in (requires browser restart)'

🖆 Java Control Panel 📃 🗖 🖻	٢.
General Update Java Security Advanced	
Settings	
tar Bebugging	
um Java console	
⊡ lava Plug-in	
Enable the next-generation Java Plug-in (requires browser restart)	
JNLP File/MIME Association	
Im JRE Auto-Download	
i ⊕Security	
i ⊕Miscellaneous	
OK Cancel Apply	



Configuring for Web Client access on Windows Server 2008 using Internet Explorer v8 or v9

- 1. Under Administrative Tools open Server Manager.
- 2. Click 'Configure Internet Explorer Enhanced Security Configuration.
- 3. Disable Internet Explorer Enhanced Security Configuration for both Administrations and Users.

Get an overview of the status of this server, perform top n	nanagement tasks, and add or remove server roles and features.
Server Summary	
Computer Information	
Full Computer Name:	QA06_RM30_W2K8W.salientsys.com
Domain:	salientsys.com
Local Area Connection:	SInternet Explorer Enhanced Security Configuration
Local Area Connection 2: Remote Desktop: Server Manager Remote Management: Product ID: Do not show me this console at logon	Internet Explorer Enhanced Security Configuration (IE ESC) reduces the exposure of your server to potential attacks from Web-based content. Internet Explorer Enhanced Security Configuration is enabled by default for Administrators and Users groups. Administrators:
Security Information Windows Firewall: Windows Updates: Last checked for updates: Last installed updates: IE Enhanced Security Configuration (ESC):	
Roles Summary	
	OK Cancel

4. Open Internet Explorer and click Tools -> Internet Options -> Security -> Trusted Sites

Internet Options			
General Security Privacy Content Connections Programs Advanced			
Select a zone to view or change security settings.			
This zone contains websites that you trust not to damage your computer or your files.			
Security level for this zone			
Allowed levels for this zone: All - Hedium - Prompts before downloading potentially unsafe - content - Unsigned ActiveX controls will not be downloaded			
Enable Protected Mode (requires restarting Internet Explorer)			
<u>C</u> ustom level Default level			
Reset all zones to default level			
OK Cancel Apply			



- 5. Click Sites
- 6. Enter the URL of the CompleteView Web Client and click 'Add' to add the CompleteView Web Client to the list of Trusted Sites.

Trusted sites	×
You can add and remove websites from this zon this zone will use the zone's security settings.	ne. All websites in
Add this website to the zone:	
http://192.168.1.5:8080	Add
Websites:	
	Remove
Require server verification (https:) for all sites in this	zone
	Close

Note: For users of Internet Explorer 9 on Windows Server 2008, you should also 'Disable ActiveX Filtering' in Internet Explorer's security settings.

- 1. In Internet Explorer, click Tools -> Internet Options -> Security
- 2. Click 'Custom level...'





3. Under the 'ActiveX Controls and plug-ins' heading set 'Allow ActiveX Filtering to 'Disable'





Additional Resources

Visit the Salient website, <u>www.salientsys.com</u>, for additional support and CompleteView training:

- Manuals & Documentation (<u>www.salientsys.com/support/manuals-documentationx/</u>) Includes Administrator's Manual, Client User Manuals (including Video, Alarm and Web clients), *How To* Guides and Tips.
- Online Tech Support (<u>www.salientsys.com/elearning</u>) Get quick access to online tech support modules that cover the most frequently asked product questions, such as "Adding and Moving IP Camera Licenses."
- Salient University eLearning (<u>http://salientsys.latitudelearning.com</u>) A convenient way to get trained on CompleteView. Register online for access to interactive, user training modules covering the Video, Alarm, Mapping and Web clients.
- **Classroom Training** (<u>www.salientsys.com/training</u>) Traditional, classroom training is available throughout the United States. Please visit the Salient website for training calendar, agenda and registration.

Salient Systems 10801 N. MoPac Expy. Building 3, Suite 700 Austin, TX 78759 512.617.4800 512.617.4801 Fax www.salientsys.com



©2012 Salient Systems Corporation. Company and product names mentioned are registered trademarks of their respective owners.